
PLANNING COMMISSION 
MARCH 19,2014 

Chairman Jeffrey Grotsky called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. In attendance were 
Commission members David Bowering, Morgan Ellis, Robert Fordi, Jane Richman, Paul 
Showalter and Gil Watson, Kees de Mooy, Zoning Administrator, Andrew Meehan, 
Esquire, attorney for the Commission, and Jennifer Mulligan, Stenographer. 

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETINGS 

Mr. Grotsky asked if there were any additions or corrections to the minutes of the 
meeting of February 19,2014. Mr. Showalter moved to accept the minutes as 
presented, was seconded by Mr. Watson and carried unanimously. 

KENT PLAZA - CONCEPT PLAN 

Mr. John Knibb of the Cordish Company (owner of Kent Plaza), Shelly Kerry of Kerry 
Architects (Kent Plaza) and Kerrigan McCay of Yarosh Architects (Acme), as well as 
John Connolly (senior director of construction for Acme), and John Peters (facility 
manager for the Cordish Company) presented. 

Mr. Knibb stated that there were strict budget guidelines that were being followed for this 
project. He said that in their design they tried to be sensitive to Chestertown's historic 
architecture in their remodeling plans. He said that the agreement was for a remodel of 
the shopping center, refinish the parking lot and lighting, and to look for opportunities to 
create green space and landscaping. Mr. Knibb stated that he wanted to be proud of the 
shopping center, but for the community to be proud of it as well. 

Mr. Knibb stated that the size of Acme will approximately double. He said that they 
were trying to fast track the project and would like to be under construction by May 1 st. 

He said that Cordish would like finish the remodel and site work by year's end. 

Mr. Kerry showed the existing fac;ade of Kent Plaza. He said that Acme would be the 
major tenant. He said that the existing band of cedar in the plaza would remain and be 
repaired and replaced where necessary. Trim work would be added and the existing steel 
columns would be trimmed out and gables and siding would be added to parts of the 
building. Brick piers and stone would be incorporated into the design as well as canvas 
awnings. Mr. Kerry showed a sample board that called out the colors for Acme and the 
proposed brick and stone. 

Mr. Kerry stated that that the soffits would be replaced as well as the lighting under the 
soffits. There would be accent lighting sconces along the face of the building. 

Mr. Connolly stated that Acme would continue in the existing space and expand into the 
current locations of the liquor store, Goodyear store and Big Mixx. He said a loading 
dock would be added in the rear. 



3/19/14 Planning Commission Meeting 20f5 

Mr. Connolly stated that the empty stores would be gutted and built out first and then the 
interior renovation of the Acme will begin. He said that Acme will remain open 
throughout the renovation. 

Mr. Connolly reviewed the interior layout of Acme. He said that food and non-food 
items would be expanded in every department. He said that Acme has approximately 
seventy-five (75) employees currently and after the expansion was finished they would 
have about one hundred thirty (130) employees. 

Mr. Knibb stated that this was a multi-million dollar renovation to the Kent Plaza 
Shopping Center. He added that this summer, Acme will have been at the shopping 
center for 50 years. 

Mr. Watson stated that he would like to see the design for the parking lot. Mr. Knibb 
stated that he was working on revisions behind the store, getting information from 
different lighting supply companies, and working on a photometric plan for the parking 
lot. LED lighting would be used instead of the existing lights and he said that foot 
candles had to be increased. 

Mr. Knibb stated that he was also looking for places to create green space. He said that 
he thought the main entrance was large enough to create a landscaped median creating a 
grand entrance for the center. He said that he did not want to lose parking spaces as they 
were hoping to draw more people to the shopping center, but there were opportunities for 
enhancement, such as along the side of Rose's Store. 

Mr. Watson stated that the parking lot was bleak and this was an opportunity to make it 
into something special. Mr. Knibb stated that he was going to do his best and the entire 
parking lot would be repaved, relighted, and many other major improvements. 

Mr. Knibb stated that he would return with the site plans for the parking lot but did not 
want to hold up the start date of the renovation to the building. 

Mr. Bowering asked ifthere was parking analysis performed in order to see what room 
there is for green space. Mr. Knibb stated that he would not remove parking spaces for 
green spaces. He said that the goal was for the center to be far more successful with 
more customers to fill the parking spaces. 

Mr. Fordi asked if there was a ratio for parking available. Mr. Knibb stated that a count 
would be done. He said because of the way the expansion was taking place, there was no 
net change in overall square footage for the site. He said that the difference would be in 
the volume of sales once the remodel was finished. 

Mr. Bowering asked if the portion of the shopping center with Rite Aid and Olympia 
Sports would be renovated as well. Mr. Knibb stated that there would be slight 
modifications to those buildings, but the agreement with Acme was to remodel the main 



3/19/14 Planning Commission Meeting 30f5 

facility. He said that the buildings mentioned by Mr. Bowering would have the cornice 
work and parapets added to that wing so that it would match. Mr. Grotsky stated that he 
would like to see those plans. 

Mr. Showalter stated that Chestertown was Night Sky compliant. Mr. Knibb stated that 
he was planning to comply with the Night Sky requirements. 

Mr. Showalter asked if there was any change to the storm water management on site. Mr. 
Knibb stated that it would change very little. There was going to be some improvement 
with the landscaping and Acme was making improvements to the back ditch in the rear 
which would provide enhanced filtration. 

Mr. Showalter asked if there was an equivalent Acme nearby that the Commission could 
view. Mr. Peters stated that the two most recent stores completed were in Bryn Mawr 
and at loth and Reed Streets in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. He said that it would 
compare with the Centreville Acme but the interior finishes and lights would be enhanced 
in the Chestertown store. Mr. Peters stated that the entire store would look brand new 
when they were finished with the remodel. 

Mr. Watson asked ifthere would be public restrooms. Mr. Knibb stated that there would 
be modernized bathrooms with ceramic tile floors and walls. 

Mr. Grotsky asked about the portion of the building where Rose's was located as it 
appears there is an additional entrance. Mr. Knibb stated that they were trying to break 
up the fac;ade by creating what appears to be a second entrance way. He said that 
retailers were downsizing and the renovation was being done so that it could 
accommodate more than one retail space if it needed to be split. 

Mr. Knibb stated that the entire building would also be reroofed during the remodel. Mr. 
Peters stated that just the roofing would cost over $500,000.00. He said that the 
landscaping and parking lot would also cost approximately $500,000.00. 

Mr. Peters stated that he was hoping to have a large green space at the entrance to the 
shopping center. He said that there were also planting opportunities by Walgreen's. He 
added that he thought there were creative things that could be done without eliminating 
parking spaces. 

Mr. Fordi asked whether every exterior surface would effectively be renovated at the 
Plaza. Mr. Knibb stated that it would and if it was not new it would to be restored. The 
facades on the Rite Aid and Olympia portion of the plaza would be compatible. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that the Planning Commission would like to see a rendering of what 
the Rite Aid wing of the shopping center will look like, although it was clear that it would 
not get the same overall treatment as the main part of the shopping center. 



3/19/14 Planning Commission Meeting 40f5 

Mr. Knibb stated that he intended to begin the renovation before the site plan was 
approved. He said that he would bring in the rest of the information such as the parking 
lot and the Rite Aid wing in the near future. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that native trees and shrubs should be used in planning the landscape. 

Ms. Richman stated that she thought a parking study would be a good idea as the parking 
lot was large and never used to capacity. Mr. Knibb stated that there were stores vacant 
at Kent Plaza for some time and he was going to get it to full capacity, and needed the 
existing parking spaces because he anticipated the shopping center being full with 
customers. He said that he does not want to lose parking spaces. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that conceptually the Commission was in agreement that this was a 
nice project. He said that he would look forward to seeing the applicant for preliminary 
site plan approval in the near future. 

Mr. Knibb stated that he would release the architect to do a rendering of the Rite Aid 
wing of the building. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that the Commission was in receipt of a letter from Stephen Meehan, 
Esquire regarding the Comprehensive Plan and zoning for property that he owns at 
Talbot Blvd. He said that he has responded to the letter that he can make his feelings 
know about the property when they have a public hearing, as that was the time to make 
comments. 

Mr. de Mooy stated that he received comments from various State agencies, including the 
Maryland Departments of Planning, Transportation, Environment, and Natural Resources 
on the draft Comprehensive Plan. He said that these comments are not required to be 
incorporated, but good points were made and there were some mapping issues to address. 

Mr. de Mooy stated that there was a significant portion of the comments that talked to the 
Water Resources Element and the Growth Element, both of which were created within 
the last 2 years and technically not due for revision at this time. 

Mr. de Mooy stated that there was also reference to the proposed Chestertown Bypass in 
the comments. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that he would like Mr. de Mooy to provide his recommendations on 
possible revisions. He said that he would like the Commission to meet on April 16, 2014 
at 6:30 p.m. to discuss the proposed revisions. 

Mr. Grotsky stated that he would like to try to have the public hearing on the 
Comprehensive Plan in May 2014. Mr. de Mooy stated that after the hearing the public 
would have 60 days to make comments. 



3/19/14 Planning Commission Meeting 50f5 

Mr. Bowering stated that he saw the Bypass as an answer to all of the truck traffic along 
Washington Avenue and over the bridge. Mr. de Mooy stated that there was an analysis 
that showed the cost of building the bypass and argued against the benefit of not having 
trucks go through Chestertown. He said that the report said that it was not clear that the 
bypass would divert the traffic sufficiently to eliminate the problem. Mr. Watson stated 
that it was the volume of all traffic that was the problem. 

Mr. Bowering stated that the truck traffic was causing structural damages to the houses 
along Washington Avenue. He asked what was going to be done to address that problem. 
Mr. Grotsky asked if changes should be made in the Comprehensive Plan to come up 
with alternatives or suggestions to relieve the traffic on Washington Avenue. Mr. de 
Mooy stated that he thought the Bypass should be left in the Comprehensive Plan and 
provide some additional steps that would lead to the goal of it being built. 

There being no further business, Mr. Watson moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:55 
p.m., was seconded by Ms. Ellis and carried unanimously. 

r, 'f(" '{ 
Submitted bY:\...i,;:{:../it. I:' !vi ({r---

J ebIl1f~i\Mulhgan J 
Sltenogi:~her 

Approved by: 
Jeffrey Grotsky 
Chair 



-

7:30 p.m. - Regular Meeting 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
FE3BRtfAft¥-19, 2014 

m~ 

1. Minutes of Planning Commission Meeting of February 19,2014 

2. Concept Plan - Kent Plaza - Fayade Renovation 


